THEFAYETTECOUNTY ZONINGBOARD OF APPEAL S met on October 28, 2002 at 7:00P.M.
inthe Fayette County Adminidirative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue West, Public Meeting Room, Firgt
Hoor, Fayetteville, Georgia.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Bill Beckwith, Chairman
David Bartosh, Vice-Chairman
Ron Mabra
Larry Blanks

MEMBERS ABSENT: Tom Mahon
STAFF PRESENT: Kathy Zatler, Director of Zoning/Zoning Adminigtrator
Bill McNaly, County Attorney
Karen Morley, B.O.C. Clerk
Deputy Warren Chamberlin
Robyn S. Wilson, ZBA Secretary/Zoning Coordinator

STAFF ABSENT: Deores Harrison, Zoning Technician

Welcome and Call to Order:

ChairmanBeckwith called the meeting to order and led the Pledge of Allegiance. Heintroduced the Board
Members and Staff and confirmed there was a quorum present.

* k k k k k k k k%

1. Consideration of the Minutes of the meeting held on August 26, 2002.

Larry Blanks made the motion to approve the Minutesas circulated. David Bartosh seconded the motion.
The motion unanimoudy passed 4-0. Tom Mahon was absent.

* k k k k k k k *x %

Kathy Zeitler read the procedures that would be followed for presentation and opposition for petitions.

2. Consideration of Petition No. A-528-02, Jackie L. Mask, Owner, and Doug Barker,
Agent. request a 495 foot Variance to reduce the distance betweena tower facility and an
off-site residence from a minimum of 1,000 feet to a minimum of 505 feet. Thisproperty
islocatedin Land L ot 253 of the 4" District, frontson S.R. 85 South and M cBride Road.,
and iszoned A-R.

Doug Barker stated he was representing the property owner Jackie Mask and East Jasper Towers, LLC.

He said that East Jasper Towers began looking into devel oping acommunication tower along this stretch
of SR. 85 to meet the needs of multiple wirdesscarriers. He reported that they first began seeking asite
in this area by reviewing the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance to determine favorable locations. He
commented that Fayette County designates 1,000 feet oneither sde of S.R. 85 asahighway corridor and
aso as afavorable location for tower fecilities.

Mr. Barker presented tax maps on the overhead projector whichindicated the highway corridor conggting
of 1,000 feet on each side of S.R. 85 South. Heexplained that the maps aso indicated parcelsinthearea
which met dl the requirements, however the parcels were County properties utilized for schools. He
confirmed that the ordinance does not alow towers on school or day care properties. He reported that
he contacted the schools and they refused to alow atower on their property. He advised that there was
one other tract directly acrossthe street fromthe proposed site, whichbelonged to achurch, however they
did not want to enter into an agreement for a tower to be located on their property.



Page 2
October 28, 2002

Mr. Barker noted that there is a gas station which is surrounded by Mr. Mask’ s property which givesa
commercid fed to the area which was the most favorable locationinthisarea. He confirmed that thereare
residential areasaround the subject property, therefore they had reduced the proposed tower height to 195
feet even though the highway corridor alowed atower 250 feet in height. He explained that by reducing
the height of the tower, the F.A.A. would not require the tower to belit. Hewent on to say that resdents
usudly complain about lightsonatower. He noted that the tower would be located inthe woodsto further
shidd the view of the tower.

Mr. Barker stated that there was aneed for atower by numerous tower carriers. He said that Cingular
has been trying to provide coverage to this areafor over ayear and he thought they had appeared before
the County a couple of times but had not been successful. He remarked that he had contacted Cingular
and confirmed that they are iill seeking asteinthisareaand the proposed Steisunder review by their RF
Engineers. Headded that Verizonand AT& T had also begun to devel op their towersalong S.R. 85 South
and were dso currently reviewingthissite. He submitted aletter of intent from Sprint stating they will Sgn
alease to co-locate on the proposed tower site.

Mr. Barker explained that towers not only have to meet County requirements but also Federa guiddines
throughtheF.C.C. Hecommented that the F.C.C. rdies on the Georgia Department of Natural Resources
withthe State Higtorical Preservation Review. Hesaid that their function isto ensure that atower doesnot
affect the historica integrity of the areaincluding properties listed on the National Register of Higtorical
Places and properties that are digible for liging on the Nationa Register. He confirmed that there are
numerous homesin the areawhich are over 50 years old and thus would be digible. He reported that a
balloon test was performed to ensure that the tower would not have an impact on those homes. He
explained that afour (4) foot diameter red baloon was raised to aheight of 195 feet at the Site location,
and photographs were takenfromthese structures. He confirmed that the balloon was not visblefrom any
of the higoric structures and added it was not vigble from very many places at dl, but there was some
vishility dong SR. 85 South. He submitted a letter of approva from the G.D.N.R. which indicated that
the tower would not have an impact on any of the historic properties.

Mr. Barker stated that due to the size and shape of the subject property that thereis no location on this
piece of property where the 1,000 foot requirement from an off-site residence could be met. He
commented that they had chosen the best location for the tower by Stuating it in the woods and lowering
the height and trying to avoid any adverse impact on surrounding homeowners. He reiterated that there
isno Site where the 1,000 foot requirement can be met either insde or outside the highway corridor. He
commented that should relief be granted that it would cause no detriment to public good, but it would meet
the large public demand for wireless services and 9-1-1 service. He said the County wasin search of a
place to locate their 9-1-1 backup equipment. He advised that he had submitted a letter to the County
dating that East Jasper Towers is willing to donate any space needed by the County for ther antennasand
ground space.

At thistime, Mr. Barker reserved his remaining time for rebutta. He respectfully requested approval of
the petition.

Chairman Beckwith asked if there was anyone to spesk in favor of the petition.

Lee Wright of 249 Chappell Road said he had been a resdent for 36 years. He dated that it was his
understanding that just south of this tower that Fayette County hasaste at the corner of SR. 85 and Porter
Road and are in the process of erecting their own tower which is about 2,800 feet from atower that was
rejected on 28 acres. He pointed out that the County’ s tower did not meet the 1,000 foot setback from
an off-gite resdence or the 200 foot property line setback. He commented that if the County’s tower is
truly for 9-1-1 then he is 100% for it and the County should not to have to follow any type of guidelines,
but if the County’ stower isgoing to sub-lease, management agreement, equipment swapping, or collecting
any type of revenue then it should have to follow the same guidelines as any other tower.



Page 3
October 28, 2002

Chairman Beckwith asked Mr. Wright if he was addressng another Site or the subject Ste.

Mr. Wright replied the subject site. He explained that this Ste should not have to follow the guiddines if
the County’ sstedoes not followthe guidelines. He commented that there are severa carrierslooking for
gpaceinthisarea. Heremarked that if this tower is denied the only tower inthe areawould be the County
tower which is revenue coming in for the County which places the County in competition with the tower
companies. He reiterated that if the County tower is going to be used for commercia property too then
the guidelines need to be released for other towers and give them strong consideration whether they meet
the setbacks or not.

Chairman Beckwith asked if there was anyone to speak in opposition of the petition.

Robert Carioca of 676 McBride Road said he had been a resdent for ax (6) years. He stated that the
tower would be an eyesore and did not belong in aresidentia area. He advised that McBride Road is
zoned A-R. Henoted that he owns 10 acresand ad so hashorses. Hereported that there arefarms up and
down the road and the scenery is beautiful. He commented that he did not want to see anything detract
from the beauty of the area, which isthe reason his family located on McBride Road. He sad that the
tower would be a detriment to property values. Hewent onto say that whenhe waslooking for property
to purchase that he did not want to be near any high power linesor cdlular towers sncethere are obvioudy
healthrisk associated withboth and he did not want to be exposed to them. Heremarked that acell tower
belongsin an indudtrid areaand not in the subject location. He stated that no one should be exposed to
the risk or have to look at the tower on adaily bass whereit will detract from the property values. He
disagreed that the 190 foot balloon could not be seen because 190 feet ishigher than the top of the trees.
He confirmed that his house waslocated .50 milefrom S.R. 85 Southand approximately 1/8 of amilefrom
the tower Ste and he said he could guarantee he could see the tower from his property, and added that it
did not belong in his backyard or anyone else' s backyard.

Tim Thoms of 625 McBride Road said his driveway is one (1) mile east of SR. 85 South. He said that
asthe“crow flies’ hishouseis probably lessthan .50 milefromthe tower. He objected to the granting of
the variance. He stated that standards had been set for towersfor areasonand thereneeded to be avery
goodreasonto overrulethoserequirements. He commented that the petitioner needed to ook for property
that complied with the requirements. He remarked that a tower could not be located on the same lot as
aschool or day care but no reasons were stated. He confirmed that heisamember of Christ Church at
Whitewater and the Pastor was unaware of the petition so he wanted to know who Mr. Barker spoke with
at the church. He advised that his church has a pre-school which operates five (5) days per week. He
pointed out that the tower would be located between Whitewater Middle School and the new e ementary
school. Henoted that the gpplicant hasto address hardship versus convenience, but the applicant had only
addressed some of theissues. He said he would like to know the hardships for why the tower could not
be developed in other locations which may have lessimpact onresidentid areas. He commented that the
tower would not impact only one (1) house but several houses which are closer than 1,000 feet. He
remarked that he isacell phone user and has three (3) lines. He asked if the gpplicant had consulted other
carriers to locate ther sgna on those towers. He aso asked what would be gained by developing this
tower isanother tower is going to be located two (2) miles down the road. He concluded that it washard
to believe that you could not see aballoon 195 feet high over the trees.

In rebuttal, Mr. Barker remarked that asfar as the tower being an eyesore, atower is atower and there
isno way to disguise atower from not looking like atower. He said that they have done everything that
they could by locating the tower in the woods and lowering the height to avoid lightingand aretrying to be
agood neighbor. He gtated that towers do not drop property values. He confirmed that numerous studies
had been performed usngLand Development Andyss whichisarea estate type company that determines
property vaues/sde vauesprior to the locationof atower and sde vaues after towers are devel oped, and
there has never been a property which has decreased in vaue due to atower. Inregard to health risks,
he confirmed that they are governed by the F.C.C. who regulates the amount of power outage the carrier
may utilize He noted that there are no indudtrid areas dong S.R. 85 South. He went on to say that they
gpoke with the church directly



Page 4
October 28, 2002

across S.R. 85 Southand they indicated they had been contacted by two (2) other companiesinan attempt
to locate atower in the area but they declined because they wanted to leave room for expansion.

Mr. Barker explained that the tower company cannot do the balloon test because the Georgia State
Higdoric Preservation won't alow them to perform the test. He advised that they used Michael Gool of
Gool Digitd Imaging who operates as a representative of the Department of Natural Resources. He
explanedthat Mr. Goal is very accurate and presented photographs of the balloontest whichweretaken
by Mr. Gool. He said that one pictureisdirectly adjacent to the site, one at .50 mile down McBride Road,
and the last one a just under amile down McBride Road around abend. He advised that the balloon was
not vishle.

Mr. Barker confirmed that SprintCom andyzed the proposed County tower Site to the south and stated
that they cannot utilize the tower per ther Radio Frequency Engineers. He said that SprintCom had
commented that if they could not | ocate on the subject tower that they would gill look for agtein the area
He stated that if they could have avoided filing avariance and gone with an administrative approva then
they would have certainly done so. In conclusion, he remarked that he had addressed dl of the public
comments and would be happy to answer any questions from the Z.B.A.

At thistime, Chairman Beckwith closed the floor from public comments.
David Bartosh made a motion to deny the petition. Ron Mabra seconded the motion.

Mr. Bartosh commented that his childrenattend Minter Elementary and thet the signds are very bad in the
areaand atower ismogst definitely needed especidly for public sefety. He said that there is not much we
can do about the appearance of atower so thisisnot so much of an issue as protecting the 1,000 foot
requirement between the tower and an off-site resdence. He asked if the tower could be moved closer
to the commercia property and S.R. 85 South.

Mr. Barker replied that they looked at gting the tower closer to the commercia property but there are
environmenta problems with the underground tanks which have contaminated the soils at the gas gation.
He sad soil testing was performed by utilizing boring samples but no wel monitoring. He added that they
a0 looked at gting the tower north but there are other adjacent homes in Shannon Subdivison. He
advised that the property is raively flat which will require little grading so congtruction costs are not an
issue, only some codts for the clearing.

Mr. Bartosh stated that there appeared to be a better location on the subject property for the proposed
tower.

Mr. Barker advised that there are additiona homes not indicated on the site plan and as you move to the
west you are closer to those homes. In addition, he stated that there is a house on the church property.
He said the surveyors could not determine alocation on Site which met the 1,000 foot requirement.

Chairman Beckwith noted that if a variance is granted it would authorize the company to bresk an
ordinance. He said the Z.B.A. was trying to minimize the effect as much as possible, but the requested
varianceamount isamost for hdf of the required setback. He asked if distances had been surveyed from
al of the homesin the area

Mr. Barker replied that the surveyors did not survey every home on Shamrock Road, only the closest to
thisparcd. He said that they attempted to find the most suitable location on this parcd. He Stated that
by placing the tower in the woods and trying to shidd the view that this was the most suitable location. He
requested to table the petition to alow the surveyors time to provide additiona locations. He commented
that there were additiond locations on the subject property, but they went with the location which they fdt
was the best and they would welcome the Z.B.A. opinion on which location they felt was the best.



Page 5
October 28, 2002

CharmanBeckwithsaid that the Z.B.A. could not tell themwhat to do and the Z.B.A. isnot asking to find
alocation 950 feet away. Hedtated theZ.B.A. dwayslooked for dternate waysto do something different
thanwhat seemsto be the best but it may not be, it may just be convenient. He remarked that there may
be other locations on ste for the tower because there seemed to be some informationmissng and thiswas
aserious congderation.

Larry Blanks commented that he was not redlly that convinced by the photographs of the balloontest. He
sad the Z.B.A. must consider more than just the need for a tower, and a 495 foot variance is exorbitant
to request for reducing the required distance. He added that he could not support the variance request.

Ron Mabra said he was uncomfortable withthe amount of the variancerequest. He stated that the B.O.C.
were not in favor of reducing the requirement to 750 feet. He remarked that the words “exceptional
circumstances’ gticksin his mind and he does fed that exceptiond circumstances have been presented.

Mr. Bartosh sad he honestly would appreciate atower in the area but this was not the right spot. He
stated that the Z.B.A. would be more open to looking at placing the tower closer to the commercia
busness. He commented that the intent of the County isto protect the 1,000 foot setback. He added that
other efforts could be made on the subject property for locating the tower.

Mr. Barker said that they had come forward with the location which they felt was the best.

Chairman Beckwith asked Attorney McNadly if the variance was tabled then would the motions have to
be withdrawn.

Attorney McNaly replied yes ar.
David Bartosh withdrew his motion. Ron Mabrawithdrew his second.
Ron Mabra made a motion to table the petition. Larry Blanks seconded the motion.

ChairmanBeckwithasked Robyn Wilsonif thiswould give her adequate time to run the legal advertisement
snce the November meeting had been moved forward one week.

Mrs. Wilson advised that the deadline for submittal to the newspaper had passed.

Mr. Blanks asked if anew ad would have to be run in order to table the petition until next month.
Attorney McNally advised that anew lega must be advertised since the distances and the amount of the
requested variance would be changed, and Mr. Barker would need time to perform arevised study and

resubmit his petition. He suggested to table the petition until December.

Ron M abramade amotionto table the petitionuntil December 16, 2002. Larry Blanksand David Bartosh
seconded the motion. The motion to table unanimoudly passed 4-0. Tom Mahon was absent.

Mr. Barker thanked the Z.B.A.

* k k k k k x *x x %

3. Consideration of Petition No. A-529-02, Robert C. Shell. Owner, and Sanober F. Sheikh,
Agent, request a Change of the Nonconforming Use of a Structure froman Antique Shop
toa Convenience/Grocery Store. Thispropertyislocatedin L and L ot 8of the6™ District,
frontson S.R. 85 South, and iszoned A-R.




Page 6
October 28, 2002

Robert Shell of Padgett Road stated he had lived herefor 36 years. He advised that he owned a country
store which was located at S.R. 74 South and S.R. 85 South. He said he did not know why he was
present and that he had been paying commercid tax on this property since he purchased it in 1966. He
commented that he was told that a public hearing was necessary for Ms. Sheikh to be issued abusiness
license.

Chairman Beckwith informed Mr. Shell that the reason he was gppearing beforethe Z.B.A. isbecause he
is requesting a nonconforming use of the structure which requires Z.B.A. gpprova.

Kathy Zeitler concurred and added that anytime there is a change fromone nonconforming use to another
nonconforming use the Z.B.A. must gpprove the change.

Chairman Beckwith verified that Ms. Shelkh wants to change the use from an antique shop to a
convenience store.

Sanober Sheikh confirmed that the use would not be a convenience store but would be agrocery storeand
there would be no gasoline sdes.

Chairman Beckwith asked if there was anyone to spesk in favor of the petition. Hearing none, he asked
if there was anyone to spesk in opposition of the petition.

Kathy Zetler read aletter of oppositionfrom Charles Rogers of 100 Grindstone Way who I€ft the meeting
early, and he objected to the request and expressed concern about traffic problems.

At thistime, Chairman Beckwith closed the floor from public comments.

Larry Blanks made a motion to approve the petition. David Bartosh seconded the motion for discusson
purposes.

Mr. Blanks stated that the grocery store would be conditiona to anumber of County ordinances which
must be complied withprior to the issuance of a business license. He pointed out that the subject property
isapiece of commercialy used property located onacommercid corridor. Hesaid asmal grocery store
could probably be used on this side of the County.

Mr. Bartosh pointed out that there were conditions suggested in the andlysis due to concerns about such
items as parking spaces and deceleration/accelerationlanes. He sated thet if the petition isgranted by the
Z.B.A. the gpplicant would have to comply with ordinance requirements and that it was very possible the
property would not be able to meet dl the criteria. He also asked what thiswould dotoaZ.B.A. approval
of this petition if they were later unable to meet the ordinances.

Ms. Zeitler advised that even with approval by the Z.B.A. if the gpplicant could not comply with the
development requirements that he would not be able to be issued a businesslicense nor openthe business.
She pointed out that this is a nonconforming structure and a nonconforming use on a nonconforming lot
which iszoned A-R. She emphasized that the Z.B.A. needed to look at the current use as grandfathered
in, but achange of use needed to be reviewed by the Z.B.A. to determineif it isamore intensve use than
the present use. She noted that the change of usewould require additiona parking and a Ste plan would
be required to locate the additional parking and how it meets the requirements. She reported that there
are a0 intersection improvements required by D.O.T. which would be indicated on a Site plan.

Mr. Bartosh asked if the Z.B.A.’s gpprova would override the other regulations.

Mrs. Zeitler replied that it would not override the other regulations. She advised that the applicant’ snext
step would beto get a Site plan approved for a new use before a business license could be issued. She
added that as part of the site planapprova dl the requirements from each department and D.O.T. would
have to be met.



Page 7
October 28, 2002

Mr. Bartosh asked if the Z.B.A. grants gpprova for a grocery store and they are unable to meet the
County and State guiddines what would happen.

Mrs. Zeitler replied that the applicant would have approval for agrocery store use on the property, but it
is only the firg approvals which is needed. She explained that if the site could not comply with the
requirements for the approved use then and could not get the other approvals then the Z.B.A.’ s approval
reglly doesn’'t mean anything.

Mr. Bartosh asked if they could continue to operate the antique shop.

Mrs. Zeitler replied yes. She explained that the main reason the request goestothe Z.B.A. firg before it
goes through any other approvasis so the Z.B.A. can determine if the proposed use isamore intensve
useor not. Sheadvised that the property isnonconforming to aot of the requirements. She confirmed that
thisis not just a nonconforming use of the structure but anonconforming structure aswell. Shereiterated
that the Z.B.A. needed to determine if the proposed useisamore intensve use. She reminded the Z.B.A.
that the Zoning Ordinance does not alow a nonconforming use to change to a more nonconforming use,
asinamoreintensve use of the property.

Mr. Bartosh stated that the Fire Marshd was requiring the existing building to be brought up to code.

Mrs. Zeitler confirmed that the Fire Marshd is one of the departmentswho would have to approve the site
plan, and Fire is also requiring that the property tie onto County water.

Attorney McNaly advised the Z.B.A. that they are granting avariance to the norma zoning. Heexplained
that if the exigting building was not brought up to code that anew structurefor this use could be constructed
on gte with this variance approvd.

Chairman Beckwith asked if the new structure would have to meet al gpplicable ordinances.

Attorney McNally replied yes, except for what requirementsthe Z.B.A. varied. Heexplained that normaly
aone (1) acre tract would be required to locate a commercia endeavor, and that an approva of this
request by the Z.B.A. would permit a nonconforming use on ahdf acre nonconforminglot Sze. He stated
that if the exiging building could not meet fire codes then it could be torn down and another building
congtructed on thislot.

Mr. Blanks verified that a new building would sill have to meet the parking spaces and dl the other
requirements.

Attorney McNaly replied yes ar.

Ron Mabra remarked that he had no problem with the request.

Mr. Bartosh asked if Mr. Shell owned the property surrounding the subject property.
Mr. Shell replied yes gr.

Mr. Bartosh asked if it would not be a good investment to add property to the .50 acrelot to make it a
conforming lot.

Mr. Shdl stated that he would love to have hdf the property fronting Padgett Road and the other hdlf
fronting S.R. 85 South and have it zoned commercid.

Mrs. Zeitler explained that the reason the ordinance prohibits the Z.B.A. from dlowing a nonconforming
use to become amoreintendve nonconforming useis because whenit getsto that point it istime to make
it aconforming lot and to rezone and bring it into compliance withthe Zoning Ordinance and Devel opment
Regulations. She added that this was the reasoning behind what



Page 8

October 28, 2002

the ordinance required.

Mr. Bartosh said that there appeared to be aremedy available without this request.

Mr. Shell remarked that there would not be more treffic generated by the grocery store than thereisfor
the antique shop.

Ms. Sheitkhcommented that it will only be a small grocery without gasoline sales. She stated shehad given
adrawing to Mrs. Zeitler with the parking indicated. She said therewould be no problemfor the parking
lot or the Fire Marshal.

Mr. Shell asked why he would have to connect to County water when he had a good well.

Mrs. Zeitler replied that the Fire Marshd required connection to County water for nonresidential uses.
Ms. Sheikh remarked that they could do this too.

Mr. Shell stated that the water line was behind the church.

Mr. Bartosh commented that thisis out of the Z.B.A.'sarea

Mr. Shell said he purchased the property in hopes of getting alittle income out of it to pay his taxes since
heisretired.

Mrs. Zeitler stated shewould liketo addressthe traffic. She referenced the commentsfrom the Engineering
Department who voiced strong objections to the request. She noted that she had reviewed the Indtitute
of Traffic Engineers publication for the traffic trips generated by the existing use and compared these with
the trips from the proposed use, and the traffic was severd times greater due to the nature of the use and
the hours of operation for the proposed use. She said she strongly disagreed with the comments that the
“grocery” store would not increase treffic.

At this time, Chairman Beckwith cdled for the vote. The motion for gpprova passed 3-1 with David
Bartosh voting in oppostion. Tom Mahon was absent.

* k k k k k k k k%

Chairman Beckwith asked if there was any further business.

Kathy Zeitler advised that one (1) application had been submitted for the November 18" Public Hearing.

There being no further business, David Bartosh made the maotion to adjourn the meeting. Ron Mabra
seconded the motion.  The motion unanimously passed 4-0. Tom Mahon was absent. The meeting
adjourned at 8:09 P.M.



Page 9
October 28, 2002

Respectfully submitted by:

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

OF

FAYETTE COUNTY

ROBYN S. WILSON
SECRETARY

BILL BECKWITH
CHAIRMAN



